
President 

Larry Smith 

Vice President 

Mickey Valdivia 

Treasurer 

Chander Letulle 

Secretary/Asst. 

Treasurer 

Robert Ybarra 

Directors 

Dr. Blair M Ball 

Ron Duncan 

Kevin Walton 

General Manager 

Lance Eckhart, 

PG, CHG 

Legal Counsel 

Jeffry Ferre 

SAN GORGONIO PASS WATER AGENCY 
Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

September 11, 2023 at 1:30 p.m. 

THIS MEETING IS BEING HELD IN PERSON. 

REMOTE ACCESS IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CONVENIENCE OF THE PUBLIC. 

TO JOIN VIA ZOOM, CLICK HERE:  Zoom Link Board Meeting 

TO JOIN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE  

CALL: 669-900-6833 | MEETING ID: 956 9367 4121 

1. Call to Order, Flag Salute, Invocation, and Roll Call

A. Approval of any Board member requests for remote participation

2. Adjustment and Adoption of Agenda

3. Public Comment: Members of the public may address the Board at this time

concerning items relating to any matter within the Agency's jurisdiction. There will be an

opportunity to comment on specific agenda items, as the items are addressed.

Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than five minutes.  Under

the Brown Act, no action or discussion shall take place on any item not appearing on

the agenda, except that the Board or staff may briefly respond to statements made or

questions posed for the purpose of directing statements or questions to staff for follow-

up.

4. Consent Calendar:

If any board member requests that an item be removed from the Consent Calendar, it

will be removed so that it may be acted upon separately.

A. Approval of the Minutes of the Board Meeting, August 21, 2023 (pg. 3)

5. Reports – Staff

A. General Manager's Report

B. General Counsel's Report

6. Informational Presentations and Updates:

A. Foothill Pipeline Crossing at City Creek (pg. 9)

7. New Business – Discussion and Possible Action:

A. Consider Joint Funding and Cost-Sharing Agreements between the United

States Geological Survey Cooperative Water Resources Program and

Activities in the Yucaipa Basin (pg. 18)

B. Annual Adoption of Pay Scale for CalPERS (pg. 58)

C. Water Exchange Agreement between AVEK and SGPWA (pg. 62)

8. Reports – Directors and Committees

9. Topics for Future Agendas

https://zoom.us/j/95693674121


SGPWA 
Regular Board Meeting 

September 11, 2023 

10. Announcements

A. Regular Board Meeting, September 18, 2023 at 6:00 p.m.

B. Finance and Budget Committee Meeting, September 21, 2023 at 8:00 a.m

C. Regular Board Meeting, October 2, 2023 at 1:30 p.m.

D. Water Conservation & Education Committee Meeting, October 10, 2023

11. Adjournment

 Pending Agenda Items: 

(1) Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of 
the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Agency's office, during regular business 
hours.  When practical, these public records will also be made available on the Agency's website, accessible at: www.sgpwa.com (2) Any person with a
disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone the Agency at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to
make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation.

Request Requester 
Date of 
Request 

Early Bond Payoff 2023-2029 Ball 7/17/2023 

GAP Funding Program Short-term Interest 
Rate 

Ball 7/17/2023 

Retailer Water Rate Letulle 8/21/2023 

Non-Profit Foundation Sponsorship 
Program 

Valdivia 8/21/2023 

2



SAN GORGONIO PASS WATER AGENCY 
1210 Beaumont Avenue, Beaumont, California 92223 

Minutes of the Board of Directors  
August 21, 2023 

THIS MEETING WAS HELD IN PERSON, 
WITH PUBLIC AVAILABILITY PROVIDED VIA ZOOM. 

Board Present: Larry Smith, President  
In-person Mickey Valdivia, Vice President 

Chander Letulle, Treasurer    
Robert Ybarra, Secretary 
Blair M Ball, Director  
Ron Duncan, Director 
Kevin Walton, Director 

Staff Present: Lance Eckhart, General Manager 
In-person Tom Todd, Jr., Chief Financial Officer 

Cheryle Stiff, Executive Assistant 
Emmett Campbell, Sr. Water Resources Planner 
Matt Howard, Operations Manager 

Consultants Present: Holland Stewart, Legal Counsel 
In-person 

1. Call to Order, Flag Salute, Invocation, and Roll Call
The San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency Board of Directors meeting was called to
order by President Larry Smith at 6:00 p.m., August 21, 2023.  President Smith
led the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag.  President Smith gave the invocation.
President Smith requested a roll call.

Roll Call Present Absent 

Director Ball  ☒ ☐

Director Duncan ☒ ☐

Treasurer Letulle ☒ ☐

Vice President Valdivia ☒ ☐

Secretary Ybarra ☒ ☐

Director Walton ☒ ☐

President Smith ☒ ☐

A quorum was present. 

2. Adoption and Adjustment of Agenda
The agenda was adopted as published.

3. Public Comment
None.

3



San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
August 21, 2023 
Page 2 

4. Consent Calendar
A. Approval of the Regular Board Meeting Minutes, August 7, 2023.

Mr. Ybarra moved, seconded by Mr. Walton, to approve the consent calendar. 
President Smith requested a voice vote.  The motion passed 7-0. 

5. Reports
A. General Manager’s Report:  Mr. Eckhart reported on the following:

1. Sites Reservoir Project: Information was provided on the final EIR and
the Water Rights application. 

2. Water Portfolio Strategic Plan: Mr. Eckhart explained what the plan will
address and how it will help the Agency understand the opportunities and risks 
associated with regional conveyance, recharge, and storage. The plan will be 
presented to the Board sometime in the Fall. 

3. Grants: Mr. Eckhart stated that the Agency is preparing a grant
application for its local turf pilot program.  He also informed the Board that 
SBVMWD and SGPWA are resubmitting the grant application for the County Line 
Recharge project to other programs.  Staff is looking for opportunities for planning 
money for the design and permitting of Brookside West and the Backbone 
Pipeline project.  He informed the Board that South Mesa Water Company 
received an Award Letter from the State Water Resources Control Board for $10 
million; the grant will help fund the County Line Road Waterline Replacement 
Project.   

4. Water Orders and Water Deliveries meeting: Mr. Eckhart met with staff
from the City of Banning, BCVWD, and YVWD on August 15th to discuss water 
orders and water deliveries.   General Manager’s meetings will be resumed in the 
future. 

5. City of Beaumont 3x2 meeting: On August 21, 2023 Mr. Eckhart met with
staff from the City of Beaumont, BCVWD, and a facilitator to discuss the Recycled 
Water Plant and a purchase and distribution agreement. 

6. Brookside/Beaumont Avenue Intersection:  An update on the project was
provided to the Board. 

Mr. Jaggers (General Manager BCVWD) provided public comment. 

B. Legal Counsel’s Report:  None.

6. Informational Presentations
A. Water Conditions Update
Mr. Howard provided an update on the current weather, reservoir conditions, SWP
deliveries, and recharge.

7. New Business – Discussion and Possible Action
A. Inland Empire Resource Conservation District (IERCD) Contract
Mr. Eckhart informed the Board that IERCD spoke to the Water Conservation and
Education Committee and discussed the proposed contract in detail. He noted
that IERCD has consistently assisted in the development and execution of
educational and public outreach programs, aligning with SGPWA’s mission and
goals.  He is very pleased with the exposure and coverage IERCD has provided
over the years. After discussion, Mr. Ybarra moved, seconded by Mr. Valdivia, to

4



San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
August 21, 2023 
Page 3 

7. New Business – Discussion and Possible Action (con’t.)
approve a contract with IERCD for professional services for FY2023-24. President
Smith requested a roll call vote.

Roll Call Ayes Noes Abstain Absent 

Director Ball  ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Director Duncan ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Treasurer Letulle ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Vice President Valdivia ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Secretary Ybarra ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Director Walton ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

President Smith ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

The motion passed 7-0. 

B. ACWA Region 9 Election 2024-2025
Ms. Stiff stated that an election ballot for ACWA Region 9 is included in the
Agenda packet.  At this time, the Board will need to decide who it wishes to
nominate as the Chair, Vice Chair, and five to seven board members.  A
recommended slate and the option of selecting individual board candidates are
on the ballot.  After discussion, the Board nominated G. Patrick O’Dowd as the
Chair, Carol Lee Gonzales-Brady as Vice Chair, and Ms. Duff, Mr. Letulle, Mr.
Raley, Ms. Dennstedt, and Mr. Ortega as Board Members.  Mr. Valdivia moved,
seconded by Mr. Ybarra, to submit the ballot with the options so noted.  President
Smith requested a voice vote.  The motion passed 7-0.

C. Establishment of Ad Hoc Committees and Naming of Committee
Members

1. Public Information and Outreach Committee:
President Smith appointed Mr. Walton as Chair of the Committee, and Mr.

Mr. Ybarra and Mr. Duncan as Committee members. 

2. Personnel Policy Manual Update Committee:
President Smith appointed Dr. Ball as Chair of the Committee, and Mr.

Valdivia and Mr. Letulle as Committee members. 

3. President Smith noted that the General Manager Evaluation Committee will
meet as soon as possible.  The Committee members are Mr. Duncan, Mr. Walton,
and President Smith.

D. Discussion Regarding Resumption of Finance and Budget Standing
Committee Meetings with Designated Committee Members

President Smith noted that the Finance and Budget committee reviews the 
financial material on a monthly basis before the Board meeting.  He announced 
that the Finance and Budget Committee will resume meetings on a monthly basis, 
starting in September.  It will review the financial material and present a report to 
the Board at a following meeting.  He reviewed the current members of the 
Committee:  Mr. Letulle is the Chair;  Mr. Valdiva and Mr. Ybarra are Committee 
members.  

5



San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
August 21, 2023 
Page 4 

E. Ratification of Paid Invoices and Monthly Payroll for July, 2023
The Board reviewed paid invoices of $1,904,058.15 and monthly payroll of
$21,715.22 for a total of $1,925,773.37 for July, 2023.

F. Review of Bank Reconciliation for July, 2023
The Board reviewed the bank reconciliation for July, 2023.

G. Review of Budget Report for July, 2023
The Board reviewed the Budget Report for July, 2023.

After review and discussion, Mr. Duncan moved, seconded by Mr. Ybarra, to 
accept items 7.E through 7.G.  Mr. Letulle requested a roll call vote. 

Roll Call Ayes Noes Abstain Absent 

Director Ball  ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Director Duncan ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Treasurer Letulle ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Vice President Valdivia ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Secretary Ybarra ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Director Walton ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

President Smith ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

The motion passed 7-0. 

H. Review of Pending Legal Invoices for July, 2023
The Board reviewed the Pending Legal Invoices for July, 2023.

After review and discussion, Mr. Smith moved, seconded by Mr. Valdivia, to 
approve items 7. H.  Mr. Letulle requested a roll call vote. 

Roll Call Ayes Noes Abstain Absent 

Director Ball  ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Director Duncan ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Treasurer Letulle ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Vice President Valdivia ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Secretary Ybarra ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Director Walton ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

President Smith ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

The motion passed 7-0. 

I. Cabazon Gap Funding Report:  Mr. Todd reviewed the report.

8. Reports - Directors and Committee Reports
President Smith reported on:

• Beaumont City Council Meeting

6



San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
August 21, 2023 
Page 5 

 

8. Reports - Directors and Committee Reports (con’t.) 
Director Walton reported on: 

• SBVMWD District Board Meeting 

• YVWD Board Meeting 

• Banning Chamber Breakfast 

• MAC Meeting 
 

Director Ybarra reported on: 

• Banning City Council Meeting 
 

Director Valdivia reported on: 

• Calimesa Chamber Breakfast 

• MAC Meeting 
 

Director Letulle reported on: 

• BIA – SCWC 

• Cal-Nevada AWWA Education Seminar 
 

Director Duncan reported on: 

• Banning City Council Meeting and Special Meeting 

• BCVWD 

• YVWD 

• Water Education and Conservation Committee meeting 

• Banning Chamber Breakfast 

• Cert Training EMD 
 

Director Ball reported on: 

• BCVWD Engineering Meeting 
 
9. Topics for Future Agendas 
 1. Mr. Valdivia requested the BCVWD MDN Line 16 Update be removed from 

pending items. 
 2. Mr. Walton requested the Strategic Plan discussion be removed from 

pending items. 
 3. Dr. Ball requested additional discussion on the GAP Funding Program. 
 4. Mr. Letulle requested a discussion on the retailer water rate. 
 5. Mr. Eckhart suggested having a workshop in the near future to discuss the 

Gap Funding Program.. 
 6. Mr. Valdivia requested a discussion on a non-profit foundation sponsorship 

program. 
 
10. Announcements  
 President Smith reviewed the following announcements: 

A. The Office will closed in observance of Labor Day, September 4, 2023 
B. Regular Board Meeting, September 11, 2023 at 1:30 p.m. 
C. Regular Board Meeting, September 18, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 
D. Regular Board Meeting, October 2, 2023 at 1:30 p.m. 
E. Banning Stagecoach Days, September 8th – 9th from 5-9 p.m.,  

Dysart Equestrian Park 

7



San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
August 21, 2023 
Page 6 

11. Closed Session (one item)
A. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS

Government Code Section 54956.8
Property: Water rights/supplies/exchange – SWP Table A
Agency negotiator: Lance Eckhart, General Manager, SGPWA
Negotiating parties: Matt Knudson, General Manager, AVEK
Under negotiation: price and terms of payment

The Board recessed from open session at 7:31 p.m. 
The Board convened to closed session at 7:40 p.m. 
The Board adjourned from closed session at 8:00 p.m. 
The Board reconvened to open session at 8:02 p.m. 

There was no reportable action. 

12. Adjournment
President Smith adjourned the meeting at 8:02 p.m.

Draft – Subject to Board Approval 
Robert Ybarra, Secretary of the Board 
cms 

8



Foothill Pipeline Crossing at 
City Creek

9



10



Background & History

1975 - Foothill Pipeline Constructed
2000 - Inland Feeder Highland Pipeline Constructed
2003 – Wildfires and 8,000 cfs Storm Flow
2005 -  9,900 cfs  Storm Flow in City Creek
2005 – Channel cleared of debris
2005 – MWD notices erosion in City Creek
2006 – E&H Scour Analysis Report for MWD
2006 – B&V Engineering Report for MWD
2007 – SBVMWD design of Temp. Rip Rap Blanket
2008 – West Scour Analysis Report for SBVMWD
2009 – SBVMWD Constructs  Temp. Rip Rap Blanket
2010 – December storms threaten Foothill Pipeline
2010 – Remedial repairs lost to 50-year storm event
Current – Yearly storm events continue to erode/scour stream 
channel bottom 

11



Feasibility Study Summary

Contents:
1. Geotechnical Investigations
2. Alignment Evaluation
3. Tunnel Feasibility
4. Risk Analysis
5. Regulatory Agency Requirement
6. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
7. Conclusions and Recommendations

12

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2049966/Draft_Feasibility_Study_Report-Foothill_Pipeline_Tunnel__03-03-2023__wo_Apps.pdf


13



14



1348’ 1350’

15



Upcoming Project Components

Component Status Anticipated Cost

Design/Permitting Kicking Off Q4 2023 ~$900k

Construction Anticipated Q4 2024 ~$16M

16



Questions?

17



San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 

DATE: September 11, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Lance Eckhart, General Manager 

BY: Lance Eckhart, General Manager 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER JOINT FUNDING AND COST-SHARING AGREEMENTS 
BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES GEOLOGICAL SURVEY 
COOPERATIVE WATER RESOURCES PROGRAM AND ACTIVITIES IN 
THE YUCAIPA BASIN  

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the Board approve the execution of a Joint Funding Agreement 
regarding the annual extension of the Cooperative Water Resources Program between 
the Pass Agency and the United States Geological Survey (USGS) for the fiscal year 
2023-2024 (FY 2023-24), and to enter into a cost-sharing agreement with the San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District funding USGS activities related to the Yucaipa 
Basin. 

PREVIOUS CONSIDERATION 

• Board of Directors: A cooperative Joint Funding Agreement between the USGS
and the Pass Agency has been considered annually and approved by the Board
since 1995.

BACKGROUND 

Since 1995, the Pass Agency and the USGS have cooperated on scientific investigations 
and data collection throughout the Pass Agency service area. The program has served 
and continues to serve, as an integral part of the Pass Agency’s ability to understand and 
manage the basin(s). The extension of this program for FY 2023-24 will be crucial to the 
Pass Agency’s ongoing basin management efforts. Groundwater monitoring, testing, and 
other scientific efforts are fundamental to the support and management of the Beaumont 
Bain Watermaster, the San Gorgonio Pass Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Agency, 
and the Yucaipa Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency. 

The elements of this cooperative agreement consist of: 

1. Groundwater-Level Monitoring

• USGS staff will monitor water levels at selected wells to supplement
regional monitoring efforts and maintain the regional water level monitoring
program.  Water level and water quality information can be found on the
National Water Information System.

18

https://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis


 
 

 
2. Water-Quality Monitoring 

• USGS staff will collect and analyze water quality samples at selected wells 
to supplement regional monitoring efforts and maintain the regional water-
quality monitoring program.  Water level and water quality information can 
be found on the National Water Information System. 

 
3. Gravity Survey  

• Work will consist of performing a gravity study to attempt to determine the 
exact location of subsurface faults that are located on the Danny Thomas 
Ranch property. The gravity survey will identify the location of the faults on 
the property to ensure that future proposed recharge facility (aquifer storage 
and recovery) projects and plans will not be affected. The data collected 
from this gravity survey and data interpretations will be published in the 
proposed interpretive USGS report described in Task 4.   
 

4. Data Documentation, Reporting, Interpretation, and Publications  

• Data documentation, reporting, interpretation, and publications work will 
consist of updating the existing project web page with current data from 
Tasks 1, 2, and 3. Work will also consist of developing an interpretive report 
that describes the hydrogeologic conditions and characteristics of the 
SGPWA service area. This report will include an analysis of changes in 
groundwater levels and groundwater quality data over the course of the 
cooperative program between the USGS and SGPWA since 1995. This is 
expected to be a multi-year activity, with an anticipated draft of the 
interpretive report available in 2026.   
 

ANALYSIS 
 
Below is a list of tasks and funds associated with the USGS Joint Funding Agreement 
(JFA) for FY 2023-24.     
 

USGS-SGPWA Task  
Agency 
Funds 

USGS 
Funds 

Total Funds 

Task 1: Water-Level Monitoring $87,140  $20,210  $107,350  

Task 2: Water-Quality Monitoring $77,383  $10,660  $88,043  

Task 3: Gravity Survey $38,724  $3,825  $42,549  

Task 4: Data Documentation, Reporting, 
Interpretation, and Publications 

$22,029  $5,507  $27,536  

Total:  $225,276  $40,202  $265,478  

 
  

19

https://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis
https://www.usgs.gov/centers/california-water-science-center/science/san-gorgonio-pass-artificial-recharge-investigation#overview


The USGS has procured Cooperative Matching Funds (CMF) of $40,202 to augment the 
total cost of this year’s program.  There is an increase in USGS matching funds of 
~$14,000 over last year and an increase of ~$82,000 in the Pass Agency portion 
compared to the previous year. The increase in costs from FY 2022-2023 is due to the 
new expanded scope items outlined in Tasks 3 and Task 4.  

A letter specifying work and expected matching funds from the USGS is attached 
(Attachment 1).  Signing this letter will commit parties to specified work associated with 
Tasks 1 through 4.  Following the signing of the attached letter, matching funds will be 
secured, and the USGS will execute the JFA. 

The Pass Agency is also participating in the USGS JFA through the San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal Water District (SBVMWD) in support of the USGS activities in the 
Yucaipa Basin for the Yucaipa Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA). The 
Pass Agency is a member of the Yucaipa Basin GSA and will benefit from these planned 
activities that will support our County Line Recharge Project in the Yucaipa Basin. The 
cost-share methodology was determined by the percentage of the Yucaipa Basin surface 
area within the SBVMWD and Pass Agency service areas, which are 84% and 16%, 
respectively.  

These activities include water quality monitoring, an evaluation of the fate and transport 
of State Water Project recharge within the Yucaipa Basin, and the evaluation of installing 
a new nested well near our County Line Recharge Project. The Pass Agency will be cost-
sharing specific tasks outlined in the table below: 

USGS-SBVMWD Yucaipa 
Basin Task 

San 
Bernardino 

Valley 
Share 
(84%)  

Pass 
Agency 
Share 
(16%) 

USGS 
Funds 

Total Cost 

Task 1b. Technical Outreach 
and Planning for the Yucaipa 
Basin $9,054 $1,725 $2,695 $13,474 

Task 4. Water Quality Data for 
the Yucaipa Basin $192,326 $36,634 $26,773 $255,733 

Task 5. Evaluation of fate and 
transport of recharge water in 
the Yucaipa Basin $37,675 $7,176 $11,213 $56,064 

Task 6. Evaluate a new USGS 
monitoring well site in the 
Yucaipa Basin $4,988 $950 $1,485 $7,423 

TOTAL: $244,043 $46,485 $42,166 $332,694 

20



The USGS and the Pass Agency have maintained a collaborative and productive 
partnership for the past twenty-eight years.  Over this period, the USGS has consistently 
assisted in the development and execution of groundwater quality and groundwater level 
monitoring, groundwater model studies, and investigations, aligning with SGPWA's 
mission and goals.  The USGS cooperative water resources program continues to evolve. 
It will continue to provide sound groundwater data collection, interpretation, and 
investigations supporting the Pass Agency's current projects throughout our service area. 

As per SGPWA's procurement policy, a sole source contract may be considered when 
the required services are considered proprietary and specifically desired to maintain cost-
effective system consistency.  The USGS meets these requirements for the following 
reasons: 

• Has been working in the region for decades and specifically for the Agency
for almost 30 years.

• Is considered “best in class” regarding data collection and interpretation and
develops scientific standards that are globally adopted.

• Acts as a primary data repository for high-quality scientific data, studies,
models, and other products that maintain and grow the “body of knowledge.”

• Impartiality and objectivity: Public agencies can trust that the findings and
recommendations provided by the USGS will be free from bias and political
influence, enhancing the credibility of the results.

• The USGS utilizes state-of-the-art equipment and technology utilizing
rigorous peer-reviewed standards, ensuring the scientific efforts can be
trusted.

• Is publicly accountable as a federal agency and operates with high
transparency.

Considering the investment in the long-term development and ongoing costs of this 
program, that the USGS is a federal organization with similar organizational goals, and to 
maintain system consistency, Staff has determined that the unique expertise, specialized 
knowledge, and established local presence possessed by the USGS are not readily 
available from other entities.   

FISCAL IMPACT  

The fiscal impact for the Pass Agency for both the USGS Pass Agency JFA and cost-
share activities in Yucaipa Basin would be $271,761, with the USGS providing $40,202 
in Cooperative Matching Funds for a total of $311,963 for FY 2023-24.  

The Agency has budgeted $250,000 in the FY 2023-24 General Fund Budget for USGS 
Pass Agency JFA. The cost-share activities in the Yucaipa Basin will contribute to the 
Agency’s planned recharge efforts and will utilize funds allocated for Local Recharge 
Feasibility Studies funds in the FY 2023-2024 General Fund Budget.  

21



ACTION 

Authorize the General Manager to execute the cooperative program Joint Funding 
Agreement with the United States Geological Survey for the FY 2023-2024 for $265,478 
(USGS credit of $40,202 will be applied to this amount) and to enter into the cost-sharing 
agreement with SBVMWD for the USGS Yucaipa Basin activities for $46,485.  

ATTACHMENT 

1. U.S. Geological Survey Joint Funding Agreement with SGPWA for Water
Resource Investigations, Agreement #24ZGJFA21000063

2. SBVMWD and Pass Agency Cost Sharing Letter Agreement for the Fiscal Year
2023-2024 USGS Water Resources Investigations for the Yucaipa Basin

3. U.S. Geological Survey Joint Funding Agreement with SBVMWD for Water
Resource Investigations, Agreement #23ZGJFA21000080

22



United States Department of the Interior

U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY 
C California Water Science Center 

6000 J Street, Placer Hall 
Sacramento, CA 95819 

August 30, 2024 

Lance Eckhart, PG, CHG 
General Manager/Chief Hydrogeologist 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
1210 Beaumont Ave. 
Beaumont CA 92223 

Dear Mr. Eckhart: 

This letter confirms discussions between our respective staffs, concerning the cooperative program 
between the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (SGPWA) and the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) during 
the period October 1, 2023, to October 31, 2024.  

The work proposed under the enclosed Joint Funding Agreement (JFA) is a continuation of the cooperative 
basin-wide monitoring network and study to identify, characterize and evaluate potential aquifer storage 
and recovery (ASR) sites in the San Gorgonio Pass area. The work consists of four main tasks: (Task 1) 
basin-wide groundwater-level monitoring; (Task 2) basin-wide groundwater-quality monitoring; (Task 3) a 
gravity survey to identify local faults; and (Task 4) report writing and data documentation. A description of 
these tasks is included as an attachment to this letter. 

The proposed funding for this agreement $265,478. Of this total, the USGS will contribute $40,202, 
subject to the availability of Cooperative Matching Funds, and the SGPWA will contribute $225,276. 

Enclosed is a digital version of Joint Funding Agreement (JFA) 24ZGJFA21000063, signed by our agency, 
for your approval.  If you are in agreement with this proposed program, please return a fully executed JFA 
to our office via email, iarios@usgs.gov. Work performed with funds from this agreement will be 
conducted on a fixed-price basis.  Billing for this agreement will be rendered quarterly. The USGS is 
required to have an agreement in place prior to any work being performed on a project. We request that a 
fully executed JFA be returned prior to October 1, 2023.   

If you have any questions concerning this program, please contact Meghan Dick at (619) 225-6154 or 
Christina Stamos at (619) 225-6141 in our San Diego Office. If you have any administrative questions, 
please contact Irene Rios at (619) 225-6156. 

Sincerely, 

Anke Mueller-Solger 
Director, USGS California Water Science Center 

Enclosures 

cc: Meghan Dick, USGS CAWSC
Christina Stamos, USGS CAWSC 
Allen H. Christensen, USGS CAWSC 

23



24



91366 - 2023-08-30T13 48 59 

9-1366 (Continuation) Customer#: 5000000967 Agreement#: 24ZGJFA210000063 

7. The original records resulting from this program will be deposited in the office of origin of those

records. Upon request, copies of the original records will be provided to the office of the other party.

8. The maps, records or reports resulting from this program shall be made available to the public as

promptly as possible. The maps, records or reports normally will be published by the party of the first

part. However, the party of the second part reserves the right to publish the results of this program, and

if already published by the party of the first part shall, upon request, be furnished by the party of the

first part, at cost, impressions suitable for purposes of reproduction similar to that for which the original

copy was prepared. The maps, records or reports published by either party shall contain a statement of

the cooperative relations between the parties.

The Parties acknowledge that scientific information and data developed as a result of the Scope of Work

(SOW) are subject to applicable USGS review, approval, and release requirements,

which are available on the USGS Fundamental Science Practices website (https://www2.usgs.gov/fsp/).

9. Billing for this agreement will be rendered.

QUARTERLY

Invoices not paid within 60 days from the billing date will bear Interest, Penalties, and Administrative

cost at the annual rate pursuant the Debt Collection Act of 1982, (codified at 31 U.S.C. § 3717)

established by the U.S. Treasury.

U.S. Geological Survey 

United States 

Department of the Interior 

USGS Point of Contact 

Name: Irene Rios, Budget Analyst 

Address: 4165 Spruance Rd., Ste 200 
San Diego, CA 92101 

Telephone: 619-225-6156

Email: iarios@usgs.gov 

San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 

Customer Point of Contact 

Name: Lance Eckhart, General Manager 

Address: 1210 Beaumont Ave., 
Beaumont, CA 92223 

Telephone: 

Email: 

951-845-2577 

leckhart@sgpwa.co

mSignatures and Date 

Signature: Date: Signature: Date: 

Name: Anke Mueller-Solger Name: Lance Eckhart 

Title: Director, USGS California Water Science Center Title: General Manager, San Gorgonio Pass WA 

https:/ /webforms.usgs.gov/ _layouts/15/Print.F ormServer.aspx 

Page 2 of2 

8/30/2023 

25



 

 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency Cooperative Program: 
Progress, Plans, and Costs 
 

 
Progress 

Plans 

Task 1, FFY 2024 cost for  -level monitoring $107,350 

 
Progress 

26



Plans 

Total cost for Task 2 is $88,043. Of this total, the SGPWA will contribute $77,383 and subject to the availability 
of Cooperative Matching Funds, the USGS will contribute $10,660, as reflected in the summary funding table 1. 

Task 2, FFY 2024 cost for -quality monitoring $88,043

Plans 

Total cost for Task 3 is $42,549. Of this total, the SGPWA will contribute $38,724 and subject to the availability 
of Cooperative Matching Funds, the USGS will contribute $3,825, as reflected in the summary funding table 1. 

Task 3, FFY 2024 cost for gravity survey $42,549 

Plans 

27



Total cost for Task 4 is $27,536. Of this total, the SGPWA will contribute $22,029 and subject to the availability 
of Cooperative Matching Funds, the USGS will contribute $5,507, as reflected in the summary funding table 1.

Task 4, FFY 2024 cost for reporting $27,536

Figure 1. Groundwater-level sites for federal fiscal year 2024.

28



Figure 2. Groundwater-quality sites for federal fiscal year 2024 and the proposed gravity line at the planned 
ASR site (see inset). 

USGS SGPWA Total

Task 1 Groundwater-Level Monitoring $20,210 $87,140 $107,350

Task 2 Groundwater-Quality Monitoring $10,660 $77,383 $88,043
Task 3 Gravity Survey $3,825 $38,724 $42,549

Task 4 Data Documentation, Reporting, Interpretation, and 
Publications

$5,507 $22,029 $27,536

Total $40,202 $225,276 $265,478

29



30



31



32



33



34



Heather P. Dyer 
San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
380 East Vanderbilt Way 
San Bernardino, CA 92408 

Lance Eckhart 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
1210 Beaumont Avenue 
Beaumont, CA 92223 

Re: Cost Sharing Letter Agreement for the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 USGS Water Resources 
Investigations for the Yucaipa Basin 

San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District (“San Bernardino Valley”) and the San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency (“Pass Agency”) have a long history of cooperative efforts to serve their 
respective services areas, including sharing capacity and delivery in the East Branch Extension of 
the California Aqueduct. The Yucaipa Basin straddles the service areas of San Bernardino Valley 
and Pass Agency, with 84% of the Basin’s area in the former and 16% in the latter. As the source 
of imported water for their respective portions of the Basin – that is State Water Contractors, 
both agencies play a very strategic role in regional water management and groundwater 
sustainability. In that regard, both agencies helped in forming the Yucaipa Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Agency in 2017 and together, contributes 12% of the funding.  

Historically, San Bernardino Valley has paid for United States Geological Survey (USGS) scientific 
studies to improve optimal water management for the groundwater basins in its service area, 
including the San Bernardino, Rialto-Colton, and Yucaipa Basins. Going forward, San Bernardino 
Valley and Pass Agency have agreed to share the USGS costs for the Yucaipa Basin. The proposed 
cost share is based on the percentage of the Basin’s surface area within the San Bernardino Valley 
and the Pass Agency. This Cost Sharing Letter Agreement (“Agreement”) sets forth the 
understanding between the two agencies regarding the scope of work and associated costs of the 
Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Water Resources Investigations with the USGS.  

San Bernardino Valley and Pass Agency hereby agree to share the USGS Fiscal Year 2023-2024 
Joint Funding Agreement costs pertaining to the Yucaipa Basin as provided in the project budget 
and according to the provisions set forth below. The scope of work shall consist of that work 
referenced in the attached USGS’s Joint Funding Agreement 23ZGJFA21000080. Work 
performed under the Agreement will be conducted on a fixed-price basis and billing rendered by 
USGS to San Bernardino Valley on a quarterly basis.  

35



Yucaipa Basin Project Budget 

Item Total 
Cooperator 
Cost 

San 
Bernardino 
Valley Share 
(84%) * 

Pass Agency 
Share (16%) 
* 

Task 1b. Technical Outreach and Planning 
for the Yucaipa Basin $10,779 $9,054 $1,725 

Task 4. Water Quality Data for the 
Yucaipa Basin $228,960 $192,326 $36,634 

Task 5. Evaluation of fate and transport of 
recharge water in the Yucaipa Basin $44,851 $37,675 $7,176 

Task 6. Evaluate a new USGS monitoring 
well site in the Yucaipa Basin $5,938 $4,988 $950 

TOTAL $290,528 $244,043 $46,485 

*Values are rounded to the nearest thousand.

1. Effective Date and Term
This Agreement shall be effective on the date of full execution of this Agreement by both
San Bernardino Valley and Pass Agency (“Effective Date”). The term of this Agreement
shall be from October 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024.

2. General Provisions

(a) Indemnification
Each Party ("Indemnitors") hereby agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold free and harmless
the other Parties ("Indemnitees") from and against any and all liability, expense, including
defense costs and legal fees, and claims for damages of any nature whatsoever, arising
from or connected with Indemnitors' activities under this Agreement.

(b) Notices
Correspondence to be given to any Party may be sent by first-class mail, addressed, and
delivered as set forth below in the address blocks for each Party.

(c) Representation of Authority
Each Party represents to the other that it has the authority to enter into this Agreement
and that the individual signing this Agreement on behalf of their respective Parties has the
authority to execute this Agreement and to bind their respective Parties to the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

36



(d) Counterparts
This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, all or any of which shall be
regarded for all purposes as one original and shall constitute and be but one and the same
instrument.

(e) Invoicing
San Bernardino Valley will administer the contract with USGS and be responsible for all
payments to USGS.  Upon execution of this Agreement, San Bernardino Valley will invoice
the Pass Agency for its full Pass Agency Share as set forth herein.   The Pass Agency shall
submit payment of its Pass Agency Share to San Bernardino Valley within 45 days after
receipt of said invoice.  San Bernardino Valley will prepare a final disposition of USGS
invoices for Pass Agency review no later than 45 days after performance of the USGS
tasks as set forth herein. In the event the amount paid by the Pass Agency exceeds the
total amount owed for the Pass Agency Share under the USGS invoices, San Bernardino
Valley shall refund the amount of the overpayment to the Pass Agency within 45 days after
the date of the final USGS invoices.

(f) Coordination and Cooperation
The Parties acknowledge that they are entering into an Agreement in which the
cooperation of all Parties will be required, including the need to periodically meet, confer,
coordinate, and collaborate with USGS.

BY SIGNING BELOW, THE PARTIES AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THE PROVISIONS OF THIS 
AGREEMENT 

SAN BERNARDINO VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

By: _____________________________ 
  Heather P. Dyer, CEO/General Manager 

Dated: _____________________________ 

SAN GORGONIO PASS WATER AGENCY 

37



By: _____________________________ 
 Lance Eckhart, General Manager 

Dated: _____________________________ 

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



USGS Program Letter 
2023-2024
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023

49



Agenda

USGS Program 
Letter History 

USGS Program 
Letter Elements

Yucaipa Basin 
Collaboration 

Staff 
Recommendation

50



USGS Program History
USGS Program Letter has historically been the primary source of 
hydrologic data collection and water resources investigations 

USGS Program in recent years
◦ Water Level and Water Quality Monitoring

◦ USGS-SGPWA Website Updates 

◦ Calimesa Subarea Data Collection

◦ Geographic Information System (GIS) Support

◦ Smaller focused studies for strategic purposes

51



Task 1 – Groundwater Level Monitoring 

52



Task 2 – Groundwater Quality Monitoring 

53



Task 3 – Gravity Survey 
Two fault splays of the San 
Gorgonio Pass Fault Zone trending 
across the Danny Thomas Ranch 
Property 

Perform gravity survey at Danny 
Thomas Ranch to determine if 
these faults will have an impact on 
future SWP recharge

Gravity survey will provide precise 
location for the faults running 
through the property  

54



Task 4 – Data Interpretation and 
Publications 
Development of an interpretive report 
describing the physical and 
hydrogeologic characteristics, gravity 
results, and changes in groundwater 
chemistry of the SGPWA service area 
since 1995. 

55



Additional USGS Tasks in Yucaipa Basin 
Cost-Share Agreement 
supporting the following tasks in 
the Yucaipa Basin:
◦ Technical Outreach and Planning

◦ Collection of Water Quality Data

◦ Evaluation of fate and transport of
SWP recharge water

◦ Evaluation of a new USGS
monitoring well site near the County
Line Recharge Project

56



Recommendation 
Staff requests the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager 
to execute the cooperative program Joint Funding Agreement with 
the United States Geological Survey for the FY 2023-2024 for 
$265,478, (USGS credit of $40,202 will be applied to this amount) 
and to enter into the cost-sharing agreement with SBVMWD for the 
USGS Yucaipa Basin activities for $46,485. 

57



San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 

DATE: September 11, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Lance Eckhart, General Manager 

BY: Tom Todd, Jr., Chief Financial Officer 

SUBJECT: ANNUAL ADOPTION OF PAY SCALE FOR CALPERS 

RECOMMENDATION  

Adopt the pay scale for FY 2023-24. 

BACKGROUND  

CalPERS regulations require that employee salaries be adopted by the Board and 
publicly available.  When an employee retires, CalPERS may review these resolutions at 
its discretion. 

ANALYSIS 

The Board provides oversight of the salaries of the employees of the Agency through a 
number of processes: 

 Adoption of the Agency salary schedule
 Consideration and approval, if appropriate, of annual cost-of-living

adjustments
 Contracting with the General Manager
 Consideration and approval of the annual financial budgets

The Board authorizes the General Manager to use these tools for the Agency’s benefit to 
hire and retain quality employees. 

This action is considered a ‘house-keeping’ item, which adopts any changes that may 
have taken place since the previously adopted salary scale.  This is generally done on an 
annual basis. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

This action has no fiscal impact.  The General Fund, Consigned-SWP Support Fund, and 
the Debt Service Fund budgets for FY 2023-24 have been considered, discussed and 
approved, so salary disbursements have been approved.  As mentioned earlier in this 
memo, this is a legal requirement, but does not impact any previous Board action. 

ACTION 

Adopt the salary scale for FY 2023-24. 

58



ATTACHMENTS 

Resolution 2023-14, Adopting the Updated FY 2023-24 Pay Schedule 
Pay Scale for FY 2023-24 

59



RESOLUTION NO.  2023-14 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SAN 
GORGONIO PASS WATER AGENCY ADOPTING THE UPDATED 
FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 PUBLICLY AVAILABLE PAY SCHEDULE 

AS REQUIRED BY CALPERS 

WHEREAS, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (Agency) is a CalPERS contracting agency 
subject to the Public Employees Retirement Law and the regulations thereunder; and 

WHEREAS, CalPERS regulations require that employee salaries be included on a publicly 
available pay schedule as defined in California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 570.5; and 

WHEREAS, one of the requirements of Section 570.5 is that the Agency’s salary schedule be 
adopted by resolution of the Board of Directors; and  

WHEREAS, the compensation paid to Agency employees has been previously approved by the 
Board in accordance with Agency policy and in compliance with applicable public meeting laws; 
and  

WHEREAS, solely for the purpose of complying with Section 570.5, it has been determined that 
it is in the Agency’s best interest to have the salary schedules approved by the Board of Directors 
which reflect previously approved compensation amounts.     

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency hereby adopts the updated fiscal year 2023-24 salary schedule for Agency 
employees attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated herein by this reference, with an 
effective date of July 1 of the applicable fiscal year. 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 11h day of September, 2023. 

Larry Smith 
President, Board of Directors 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 

ATTEST: 

Robert Ybarra 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 

60



Position Title Pay Rate Range Time Base

General Manager $244,704 - $269,174 Annual
Chief Financial Officer $156,672 - $215,964 Annual
Finance Manager $135,096 - $177,252 Annual
Operations Manager $145,488 - $186,228 Annual
Sr. Water Resources Planner $135,096 - 177,252 Annual
Executive Assistant $91,008 - $119,412 Annual

This complies with CCR 570.5 requirements for pay schedule information,
effective August 10, 2011.

San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency
Position Payrate Schedule

FY 2023-2024
July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024

61



San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 

DATE: September 11, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Lance Eckhart, General Manager 

BY: Emmett Campbell, Senior Water Resources Planner 

SUBJECT: Water Exchange Agreement Between AVEK and SGPWA 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to execute 
the agreement for a One-Time Water Exchange Between Antelope Valley-East Kern 
Water Agency and San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency. 

SUMMARY 

2023 has been a very wet year for the State Water Project. Because of this, SGPWA staff 
anticipates having over 15,000 acre-feet of carryover going into 2024. This presents an 
opportunity to preserve 2023 excess supply for use in a future year. To preserve some of 
this water from being reclassified as part of the 2024 Table A allocation, a transfer or 
exchange will have to be executed with another State Water Contractor who has the 
capacity to accept additional water this year. One such Contractor is Antelope Valley-
East Kern Water Agency (AVEK).  

BACKGROUND 

SGPWA’s water portfolio for 2023 currently sits at around 37,500 acre-feet. This large 
water portfolio can be attributed to the 100% allocation year and the availability of Article 
21 water. To date, SGPWA has received over 5,000 acre-feet of Article 21 water. Staff 
anticipates delivering over 20,000 acre-feet locally this year, a record-setting amount, and 
would have over 15,000 acre-feet of carryover going into 2024. 

Article 21 is available in years where there is exceptional hydrology. When available, 
Article 21 presents an opportunity to increase our water supply above our allocated Table 
A amount for the year. SGPWA received over 5,000 acre-feet of Article 21 in 2023. To 
take advantage of this additional supply, we must either store available water locally or 
find a partner who is willing to take this water on our behalf and execute a transfer or an 
exchange. Since we cannot take all available water locally this year, the need to find a 
partner would be necessary to preserve the additional supply that Article 21 has provided 
us in 2023. It would be necessary to execute a transfer and/or exchange agreement 
whereby SGPWA delivers water to another State Water Contractor, and in exchange, the 
other State Water Contractor would return a certain amount of water back to SGPWA in 
a future year. AVEK is one such contractor that has the capacity to execute this type of 
exchange in 2023. 

62



   
 

To retain this additional supply, AVEK, and SGPWA staff have developed an exchange 
agreement where SGPWA would deliver between 2,500 acre-feet and 4,000 acre-feet of 
2023 Table A to AVEK’s service area. In exchange, AVEK would return 80% of 2023 
delivered water to SGPWA in a future year. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT   
 
The cost of the exchange will be paid in the current fiscal year, from the General Fund 
Budget (the Green Bucket).  Because the primary purpose of the exchange is to store 
water for future use, the expense would be allocated to the line item ‘Purchased Water 
for Banking (Future Sale), which has a budget of $2 million.  The cost of the agreement 
includes the cost of delivering the water at the current DWR Variable invoice rate and a 
local recharge fee.  The estimate of total costs range from approximately $875,000 to 
approximately $1,400,000, depending on the delivery point to AVEK and the quantity of 
water delivered.  Revenue derived from the sale of the water when it is returned to the 
local area, or sold to another entity, will most likely be realized in a future year, and is 
expected to offset all costs associated with the exchange. 
 
ACTION 
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to execute 
the agreement for a One-Time Water Exchange Between Antelope Valley-East Kern 
Water Agency and San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 

1. One-Time Water Exchange Between Antelope Valley-East Kern Water Agency 
and San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 

2. AVEK and SGPWA Service Area Map 

63



AGREEMENT 
FOR A ONE-TIME WATER 

EXCHANGE BETWEEN 
ANTELOPE VALLEY-EAST KERN WATER AGENCY AND 

SAN GORGONIO PASS WATER AGENCY 
This agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on September ______, 2023 by 
and between Antelope Valley-East Kern Water Agency ("AVEK") and San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency ("SGPWA").  AVEK and SGPWA are individually referred to herein as 
“Party” and collectively as “Parties.”  

RECITALS
A. AVEK and SGPWA are State Water Contractors that receive imported water

deliveries from the State Water Project (“SWP”).

B. A SWP Water Supply Contract Amendment for Water Management was executed
by the Department of Water Resources (“DWR”) and SWP contractors to provide
flexibility for transfers and exchanges of SWP water within SWP contractor service
areas.

C. SGPWA has available for delivery to AVEK up to 4,000 acre-feet of SGPWA’s
2023 SWP Table A water ("2023 SGPWA Water"); and

D. AVEK and SGPWA desire to enter into an unbalanced exchange (“Exchange”) to
more effectively manage their water resources.  This Exchange will involve
SGPWA delivering to AVEK the 2023 SGPWA Water in 2023 for which AVEK will
return to SGPWA 80% of the total water delivered out of a future year’s Table A
allocation; and

E. AVEK and SGPWA will each take actions to comply with the California
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) and each party has determined that the
Exchange provided for in this Agreement is exempt from ("CEQA") pursuant to
Section 15301 of the State Guidelines.

Now, therefore, incorporating the foregoing recitals herein, the parties agree to a one-
time, unbalanced Exchange with the following term and conditions: 

1. Term

The term of this Agreement shall be from September _____, 2023 through December
31, 2033. The Exchange shall be completed on or before December 31, 2033.  The
term shall be subject to early expiration in the event the Exchange is completed prior
to December 31, 2033.

2. Unbalanced Exchange

64



For every one (1) acre-foot of 2023 SGPWA Water delivered to AVEK, AVEK shall 
return 80 percent (0.8) of an acre-foot (1:0.8, “Exchange Quantity Ratio”) to SGPWA 
("Return Water"); subject to the terms and conditions herein. 

 
3. Storage and Conveyance Rights 

 
SGPWA shall use its best efforts and cooperate in good faith with AVEK to convey or 
cause the conveyance of the 2023 SGPWA Water, which includes the use of SWP 
conveyance and storage rights associated with the 2023 SGPWA Water. However, 
the right to storage of the 2023 SGPWA Water in San Luis Reservoir is on a second 
priority basis as to SGPWA’s other water stored in that reservoir. 
 

4. Delivery of 2023 SGPWA Water to AVEK 

a. Exchange amount: SGPWA shall make available to AVEK no less than 
2,500 acre-feet and up to 4,000 acre-feet of the 2023 SGPWA Water. 

 
b. Point of delivery: The point of delivery of the 2023 SGPWA Water to AVEK 

shall be any AVEK turnout(s) in Reaches 18A, 19, 20A, 20B, and 22A.  22B 
may be a point of delivery as long as there is no impact to local deliveries to 
SGPWA’s service area. 

 
c. Scheduling: The delivery of the 2023 SGPWA Water to AVEK will be 

completed prior to December 31, 2023. SGPWA shall make this water available 
to AVEK from the date of execution of this Agreement through December 31, 
2023. A more specific scheduling of the deliveries to AVEK shall be as mutually 
agreed. The total quantity of the 2023 SGPWA Water delivered to AVEK by 
December 31, 2023, reflects the final exchange quantity and, with the 
Exchange Quantity Ratio applied, determines the amount of AVEK Water to be 
returned to SGPWA as the Return Water.  

 
d. Costs: SGPWA shall pay all costs to deliver, and any other costs or fees 

associated with the delivery of the 2023 SGPWA Water as may be imposed 
by DWR. Any such fees are to be paid within 45 days of invoice from DWR.  
In addition, SGPWA will pay for any costs incurred by AVEK in association 
with the delivery/wheeling of the 2023 SGPWA Water through 
facilities/turnouts which are not owned or operated by AVEK and which 
AVEK has estimated to be at a cost no greater than $100 per acre-foot.  
Except in regard to the fees/costs as set forth herein, each Party shall be 
responsible for their own costs, expenses and fees incurred in performing 
this Agreement. 
 

5. Return of Water to SGPWA 
 

a. Return amount: AVEK shall return to SGPWA, as the Return Water, 80% of 
the total delivered as the 2023 SGPWA Water. Said amount shall be 
between 2,000 and 3,200 acre-feet. 

 
b. Point of delivery: The point of delivery to SGPWA of the Return Water shall be 

Reach 18A of the California Aqueduct within the AVEK service area, or any 
other point of delivery available to the Parties and mutually agreeable. 

 

65



c. Scheduling: The delivery of the Return Water to SGPWA will be completed
by December 31, 2033. AVEK shall make the Return Water available to
SGPWA on an as-available basis at SGPWA’s request, in any future year in
which the SWP allocation is 30% or greater through the end of the term of this
Agreement. A more specific scheduling of the deliveries  of the Return Water
shall be as mutually agreed.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if there is any
Return Water which remains to be delivered following 2033, the term of this
Agreement shall be automatically extended for a 5-year period beginning
January 1, 2033 and ending December 31, 2038 (“Extended Term”).  During
each year of the Extended Term, AVEK shall deliver Return Water in an
amount equal to at least 20% of the balance which remains after 2033.  Any
balance remaining during 2038 shall be completely delivered on or before
December 31, 2038.

d. Costs: SGPWA shall pay all costs imposed by DWR to acquire the Return
Water and deliver it to SGPWA from the point of delivery described in Section
5b. SGPWA is responsible for the cost to deliver the water from that point on.
Any fees imposed by DWR are to be paid within 45 days of invoice from DWR.

6. Miscellaneous Provisions

a. Approvals and Further Performance: Parties will cooperate with, and
assist one another, in any approvals which are necessary to effect the
delivery of the 2023 SGPWA Water and the future delivery of the Return
Water, as may be imposed by DWR In the event the Parties cannot timely
obtain the necessary approvals to deliver the 2023 SGPWA Water in 2023,
this Agreement shall become null and void and the Parties shall have no
further obligations hereunder. In addition, each Party agrees to perform any
further acts and to execute and deliver any documents which may be
reasonably necessary to carry out the provisions of this Agreement.

b. Other Costs: This Agreement identifies the total costs of the Exchange.
Neither Party will be responsible for any costs other than those identified
herein.  For example, and not by way of limitation, each Party shall be
responsible for its own legal and consulting costs incurred in the preparation,
review and implementation of this Agreement.  The Parties acknowledge that
it may be necessary for them to sign an additional agreement to be prepared
by DWR to address changes in the points of delivery and other issues
related to operation of the SWP.

c. Liability: Neither Party hereunder shall be liable to the other Party, nor
subject to claim or damage of any nature whatsoever for the control, handling,
use, disposal, or distribution of water supplied to the other Party after such
water has been delivered to the other Party or their designee.

d. Time: Time is of the essence of this Agreement.

e. Force Majure: All obligations of the Parties shall be suspended so long as,
and to the extent that, the performance of any obligation is hindered,
interrupted, or prevented by an earthquake, fire, flood, or other act of God, or
by a drowning, strike, order of a court or governmental agency, or by any
other event or cause beyond the control of the Parties. Upon the cessation of
any such event, both Parties shall become obligated to resume performance

66



of their respective obligations under this Agreement. Notwithstanding the 
occurrence of any event described in this paragraph, the Parties shall, at all 
times, diligently undertake all reasonable efforts to perform the obligations 
contained in this Agreement. 

 
f. Amendments: This Agreement may be supplemented, amended, or 

modified only by the agreement of the Parties. No supplement, amendment 
or modification will be binding unless it is in writing and signed by both 
Parties. 

 
g. Enforceability/ Waiver: In the event that any term or condition of this 

Agreement is determined to be invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable, 
such determination shall have no effect on the other terms and conditions, 
which shall continue to be binding on the Parties. Unless otherwise agreed in 
writing, the failure of any Party to require the performance by any other Party 
of any provision hereof shall in no way affect the full right to require such 
performance at any time thereafter, nor shall the waiver of any provision 
hereof on one occasion be taken or held to be a waiver of the provision itself. 

 
h. Retention of Water Rights: This Agreement shall not be construed as a 

conveyance, abandonment or waiver of any right which is held or owned by 
either Party to use the water that is exchanged hereunder. 

 
i. No Third-Party Rights: This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the 

Parties. No other person or entity may have or acquire any right by virtue of 
this Agreement. To the extent a third party initiates a claim to challenge the 
Exchange or any aspect of the transaction, each Party (“indemnitor”) shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the other Party (“Indemnitee”) from 
and against any liability which may arise from such a claim due to the acts or 
omissions of the Indemnitor. 

 
j. Beneficial Use of Water: Pursuant to California Water Code sections 475 

and 1244, and as otherwise provided by law, the exchange and use of water 
pursuant to this Agreement shall not constitute evidence of the availability of 
surplus water or the lack of beneficial use of the water subject to this 
Agreement. 

 
k. Attorney's Fees: In the event of any legal action or proceeding arising from or 

related in any way to the breach, enforcement or interpretation of this 
Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover from the other 
Party reasonable attorney's fees and court costs in such amounts as shall be 
allowed by the court. 

 
l. Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of 

which shall be deemed an original, but all of which, when taken together, shall 
constitute one and the same instrument. 

 
m. Ambiguities: The provisions of this Agreement shall be construed as to their 

fair meaning, and not for or against any Party based upon the attribution to 
such Party as the source of the language in question. The Parties agree that 
California Civil Code section 1654 shall not apply to the interpretation of this 
Agreement. 

 

67



n. Integration: This Agreement represents the entire understanding of the 
Parties as to those matters contained herein. No prior oral or written 
understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect to those matters 
covered hereunder. 

 
o. Due Authority: Each person signing this Agreement represents that he/she 

has full power and authority to do so, and that his/her signature is legally 
sufficient to bind the Party for which he/she is signing. 

 
 
In witness whereof, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
the day and year first above written. 

 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency  Antelope Valley-East Kern Water Agency 
 
 
____________________________  ________________________________ 
Lance Eckhart, General Manager  Matthew Knudson, General Manager 
 
Dated:_______________________  Dated: ___________________________ 

68



AVEK

SGPWA

69


	1-2023-09-11 Agenda Reg Board Meeting
	4a-2023-08-21 Regular Board Minutes - Clsd Session
	6a-City Creek Xing
	Foothill Pipeline Crossing at City Creek
	Slide Number 2
	Background & History
	Feasibility Study Summary
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Upcoming Project Components
	Questions?

	7a-USGS Agreement Comb
	7a1-2023-09-11 Staff Report - USGS Program Letter JFA
	7a2-SGPWA-USGS 24ZGJFA21000063 Joint Funding Agreement
	7a3-Cost Sharing Letter Agreement for the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 USGS Water Resources Investigations for the Yucaipa Basin
	7a4-SBVMWD-USGS JFA for Water Resources Investigations Agreement 23ZGJFA21000080
	7a5-2023-09-11 USGS Program Letter JFA
	Slide 1: USGS Program Letter 2023-2024
	Slide 2: Agenda
	Slide 3: USGS Program History
	Slide 4: Task 1 – Groundwater Level Monitoring 
	Slide 5: Task 2 – Groundwater Quality Monitoring 
	Slide 6: Task 3 – Gravity Survey 
	Slide 7: Task 4 – Data Interpretation and Publications 
	Slide 8: Additional USGS Tasks in Yucaipa Basin 
	Slide 9: Recommendation 


	7b-CalPERS Salary Scale Combined
	7c-AVEK Exchange Agreement Comb
	7c1-Staff Report AVEK Exchange Agreement
	7c2-AVEK - SGPWA 2023 Exchange Agreement
	7c3-AVEK and SGPWA Service Area Map


	USGS SGPWA Total: 
	Total: 


